
Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         November 1, 2021 
Amended 10/29/21 
 

Russell County Page 1 
 

  
RUSSELL COUNTY 

 
BOARD OF SUPERVISOR’S MEETING 

 
AGENDA – November 1, 2021 

 
BOS Board Room               Regular Meeting               6:00 PM 

 
Russell County Governmental Center 

Lebanon, Virginia 24266 
 

 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL – Clerk of the Board 
 
INVOCATION   
  
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 

1. Jim Baldwin CPPD – Elk Garden Waterline Extension Tiller  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Approval of Minutes. Consider approval of the minutes of the  
following meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors….……………A-1 
 

a. Unapproved minutes of October 12, 2021          
  

2. Approval of Expenditures. Consider approval of expenditures presented  
for payment……………………………………………………………………………...A-2 
 

3. Committee Appointments for Board Consideration (Tabled). 
 

RC Planning Commission 
 
Andy Smith    Four-Year Term         November 6, 2021 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         November 1, 2021 
Amended 10/29/21 
 

Russell County Page 2 
 

 
 RC Industrial Development Authority (IDA) 
 
 Ernie McFaddin (Resigned) Four-Year Term  September 7, 2021 
  
 Community Policy Management Team 
 
 Alice Meade   Three-Year Term  November 5, 2021 
 Lori Gates   Three-Year Term  November 5, 2021 
 

Oak Grove Community Center 
  

Linda Cross   Two-Year Term  October 7, 2021 
    Frances Glovier                Two-Year Term                 October 7, 2021 
  Charlene Johnson  Two-Year Term  October 7, 2021 
   Tammy Perry            Two-Year Term  October 7, 2021 
    John Perry   Two-Year Term  October 7, 2021 
     Nancy Osborne  Two-Year Term  October 7, 2021 

           Peggy Kegley  Two-Year Term  October 7, 2021 
 
CITIZEN’S COMMENT PERIOD (Limited to 3 minutes) 
 
CONSTITUTIONAL OFFICER REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 
COUNTY ATTORNEY REPORTS AND REQUESTS………………………………………..B-1 
 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 
      REPORTS 
 

1. VDOT Smartscale Program – U.S. Rte. 19 EB Super Elevation Improvements                     
Project - $4,941,660 Grant……………………………………………………………...C-1 
 

2. Community Development Block Grant Belfast Waterline Extension, Phase II                          
Project Contract Amendment #1……….……………………………………………..C-2 
 

3. VDOT October 2021 BOS Update Report………..……….………………………….C-3 
 

REQUESTS 
 
4. RC PSA – Nash Ford/Clinch Mountain Road Water Line Extension – 2022                   

Drinking Water Construction/Financial Assistance…………………..…………..C-4 
 

5. Virginia Resource Authority (VRA) – Courthouse Renovation and                                  
Expansion Project VirginiaHELPS Lease Revenue Financing…………………..C-5 
 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         November 1, 2021 
Amended 10/29/21 
 

Russell County Page 3 
 

6. Authorization for Thanksgiving and Christmas Holiday Pay for Part-Time  
Employees………………………………………………………………………………...C-6 
 

7. Authorization for RC BOS Annual Turkey Donation Program…………………..C-7 
 

 
 
BOARD DISCUSSIONS & REMINDERS   
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
COUNTY AGENCY / BOARD REPORTS: 
  

• Treasurer’s Report ………………………………………………………………………D 
• RC IDA …………………………………………………………………………………….E 
• RC PSA …………………………………………………………………………………... F 
• Castlewood W&S ………………………………………………………………………..G 
• RC Tourism……………………………………………………………………………….H 
• RC Planning Commission ……………………………………………………………..I 
• RC Conference Center….………………………………………………………………J 
• RC Fitness Center……………………………………………………………………….K 
• RC Transportation & Safety…………………………………………………………...L 
• RC Cannery Reports…………………………………………………………………….M 
• RC Building Inspector…………………………………………………………………..N 
• RC Disposal………………………………………………………………………………O 
• RC Litter…………………………………………………………………………………...P   

 



                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
   Board of Supervisors                      Action Item 

137 Highland Drive                             Presenters - Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

         Meeting: 11/1/21     6:00 PM 
 

 
Public Hearing  
 

1. Jim Baldwin CPPD – Elk Garden Waterline Extension Tiller  
 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
 

Board Discretion. 
 

Suggested Motion: 
 

Board Discretion.  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
     Board of Supervisors                       Action Item A-1 

137 Highland Drive  Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

         Meeting: 11/01/21       6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Minutes  

Request approval of the minutes from the following meeting: 

a. Unapproved minutes of September 12, 2021 
          

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board discretion 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve Board Minutes. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Board Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



October 12, 2021 

 

A regular monthly meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Tuesday, October 12, 
2021 at 6:00 pm at the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia. 

The Clerk called the meeting to order. 

Roll Call by the Clerk: 

Present: 

Tim Lovelace 
Lou Wallace 
Carl Rhea 
David Eaton 
Steve Breeding 
Rebecca Dye 
Oris Christian 
 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk 
Vicki Porter, Deputy Clerk 
Katie Patton, County Attorney 
 
Absent: 

None 

Invocation by Caleb Johnson followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the agenda as amended. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
Recognition 
 
The Lebanon Pioneer Varsity Baseball team was recognized for being the 2021 VHSL Group 2A Baseball 
State Champions. 
The Board also recognized the Lebanon Pioneer Varsity Softball Team for being runner up at the 2021 
VHSL Varsity Softball State Tournament. 
 
Presentations 
 
Delegate Will Morefield asked that the Board go into Executive (closed) Session for discussion about an 
economic development project that includes four counties. 



 
EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION 

 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
enter Executive (closed) Session pursuant to 2.2-3711(A), (6), and (8). 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
return to regular session. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED SESSION 
 

Pursuant to § 2.2-3712(D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended each member of the Board of 
Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (I) only public business 
matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the Virginia Freedom of 
 
Information Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were identified in the motion(s) by which 
the closed meeting was convened were heard, discussed, or considered in the meeting by the Board of 
Supervisors. 

Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (I) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the substance of the 
departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 
 
Are there any who believe a departure has taken place? Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, 
discussed, or considered during the closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the 
closed meeting was convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace – AYE 
Lou Wallace – AYE 
Carl Rhea – AYE 
David Eaton – AYE 
Rebecca Dye - AYE 
Steve Breeding – AYE 
Oris Christian – AYE 
 

 
 
 



APPROVAL TO COMMIT $30,000 TO THE CIFA 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
commit up to $30,000 to the Cumberland Industrial Facilities Authority for the purpose of hiring an 
Executive Director for a (1) year contract contingent upon approval from Buchanan, Dickenson, and 
Tazewell County. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
New Business 
 

APPROVAL OF THE APPROVE THE SEPTEMBER 07, 2021 MINUTES 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the September 07, 2021 minutes and dispense with the reading thereof. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF THE APPROVE THE SEPTEMBER 21, 2021 MINUTES 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the September 21, 2021 minutes and dispense with the reading thereof. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF GENERAL COUNTY INVOICES 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve general county invoices in the amount of $700,333.89 including withholdings and reoccurring. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
County Attorney Reports & Requests 
 
Katie Patton, County Attorney discussed the county committee/board appointments. 
 
Chairperson Rebecca Dye relinquished the Chair to Tim Lovelace. 
 

 



APPROVAL TO REVERT THE BYLAWS BACK TO THE ORIGINAL LANGUAGE CONCERING 
COMMITTEE/BOARD APPOINTMENTS 

 
Motion made by Rebecca Dye, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
revert the bylaws back to the original language (before July 12, 2021) regarding committee/board 
appointments. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Rebecca Dye, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace and Oris Christian 
Nay:  Steve Breeding and David Eaton 
 
The Vice Chairman, Tim Lovelace relinquished the Chair back to Rebecca Dye 
 
Board Appointments 
 

ERNIE MCFADDIN, JACK COMPTON, AND CHARLES COLLINS APPOINTED TO THE RUSSELL 
COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
Steve Breeding nominated Ernie McFaddin 
Carl Rhea nominated Jack Compton  
Lou Wallace nominated Charles Collins 
 
Ernie McFaddin, Jack Compton, and Charles Collins were appointed to the Planning Commission by 
acclamation for (4) four-year terms, said terms ending October 12, 2025. 
 
 

FRANK HORTON, TONY LAMBERT, RON BLANKENSHIP AND JAMES EATON, JR. REAPPOINTED TO THE 
CUMBERLAND PLATEAU ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 

 
Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
reappoint Frank Horton, Tony Lambert, Ron Blankenship and James Eaton, Jr. to the Cumberland Plateau 
Economic Development Commission for (1) one-year terms, said terms ending October 12, 2022. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Tim Lovelace, Oris Christian, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
Abstain:  David Eaton 
 

JASON GULLETT AND CATHERINE PRATT REAPPOINTED TO THE DANTE COMMUNITY BOARD 
 
Lou Wallace nominated Jason Gullett and Catherine Pratt  
 
Jason Gullett and Catherine Pratt were reappointed by acclamation to the Dante Community Center 
Board for two (2) year terms, said terms ending October 12, 2023. 
 
 

 



 
KIM FIFE, BOB BREIMANN AND ANN MONK APPOINTED TO THE RCPL BOARD 

 
Carl Rhea nominated Kim Fife 
Rebecca Dye nominated Bob Breimann 
Oris Christian nominated Ann Monk 
 
Kim Fife and Ann Monk were appointed by acclamation to the Russell County Public Library Board for (3) 
three-year terms, said terms ending October 12, 2024. 
 
Bob Breimann was appointed by acclamation to the Russell County Public Library Board for a (4) four 
year term, said term ending October 12, 2025. 
 

GARY DOTSON, JOHNNY JESSEE, EUGENE FERGUSON, TONY MAXFIELD, MIKE O’QUINN, BARBARA 
COX, HENRY STINSON, JR., AND CARL RHEA REAPPOINTED TO THE RC HIGHWAY & SAFETY 

COMMISSION 
 

Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
reappoint Gary Dotson, Johnny Jessee, Eugene Ferguson, Tony Maxfield, Mike O’Quinn, Barbara Cox, 
Henry Stinson, and Carl Rhea to the Russell County Highway Safety Commission for (2) two-year terms, 
said terms ending October 12, 2023. William Watson was appointed as a representative for the Russell 
County Sheriff’s Department. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
Abstain:  Carl Rhea 
 

ANGELA FARMER REAPPONTED TO THE CPMT 
 

Motion made by Lou Wallace, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
reappoint Angela Farmer to the CPMT for a (3) three-year term, said term ending October 12, 2024. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay: None 
 

KATHRYN EASTON APPOINTED AND GREGORY BROWN REAPPOINTED TO THE SWCC ADVISORY 
BOARD 

 
Steve Breeding nominated Kathryn Easton 
Rebecca Dye nominated Jo Ellen Harding 
Tim Lovelace nominated Gregory Brown 
 
Kathryn Easton - Four votes:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Carl Rhea and Oris Christian 
Greg Brown - Four votes:  Tim Lovelace, Steve Breeding, David Eaton and Oris Christian 
Jo Ellen Harding - Three votes:  Rebecca Dye, Tim Lovelace, and Lou Wallace 



Kathryn Easton appointed and Gregory Brown reappointed to the SWCC Advisory Board for (4) four-year 
terms, said terms ending October 12, 2025. 
 

HARRY FERGUSON AND DEANNA JACKSON APPOINTED TO THE RUSSELL COUNTY IDA 
 

Steve Breeding nominated Nate Kiser, then withdrew his nomination 
David Eaton nominated Burke Artrip 
Carl Rhea nominated Roger Sword 
Rebecca Dye nominated Harry Ferguson 
 
Harry Ferguson – (4) Four votes:   Rebecca Dye, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, and Oris Christian 
 
Roger Sword – (1) vote:  Carl Rhea 
 
Burke Artrip – (2) votes:  David Eaton and Steve Breeding 
 
Harry Ferguson was appointed to the Russell County IDA for a (4) four-year term, said term ending 
October 12, 2025. 
 
The Town of Lebanon appointed Deanna Jackson for a (4) four-year term, said term ending October 12, 
2025. 
 

APPROVAL TO TABLE THE OAK GROVE COMMUNITY CENTER BOARD APPOINTMENTS 
 

Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
table the Oak Grove Community Center appointments. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
Citizens Comment 
 
The Chair opened citizens comment period. 
 
B. J. Keen, Cedar Bluff commented that the Board should consider passing a noise ordinance. 
 
The Chair closed citizens comment period. 
 
County Administrator Reports and Requests 
 

APPROVAL OF A VDOT RESOLUTION CLOSING RTE. 679 FOR A DRAINAGE CULVERT REPLACEMENT 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a VDOT Resolution Closing Rte. 679 (Thomas Warner Rd) for Drainage Culvert Replacement – 
VDOT project 0679-0836P72, N501. 
 
The vote was: 



Aye:  Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

 
 

APPROVAL OF A VRA RESOLUTION FOR THE COURTHOUSE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a Virginia Resource Authority Resolution for Proceed Reimbursement in Connection with the 
Courthouse Capital Improvement Project. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A LETTER OF SUPPORT FOR THE VA COMMUNICATIONS INITIATIVE 2022 
 
Motion made by Oris Christian, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
provide a letter of support for the Cumberland Plateau Planning District Commission for the Virginia 
Telecommunications Initiative 2022. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL OF $100,000 C PROP GRANT 
 
Motion made by Lou Wallace, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a Cumberland Plateau Planning District Commission C Prop Grant in the amount of $100,000 for 
the Three Rivers Destination Center. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL OF A $5000 DONATION TO THE VETERANS WALL OF HONOR 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a $5000 donation to the Fallen Warrior Project- Veterans Wall of Honor. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL OF A MOA WITH SPEARHEAD TRAILS 
 

Motion made by Lou Wallace, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a MOA between Russell County and Spearhead Trails. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 



Nay:  None 
 

 
 
 

APPROVAL OF DENNIS G. LONG & SHARON M. LONG PLAT 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a plat as presented by the Russell County Planning Commission for Denny G. Long and Sharon 
M. Long. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 

 
APPROVAL OF A TRAVEL REQUEST FROM THE RCPL 

 
Motion made by Lou Wallace, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a travel request from the Russell County Public Library. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO ADJOURN 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
adjourn. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________                                                 _____________________________ 
Clerk of the Board                                                                                            Chairperson 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
                                                      Board of Supervisors                         Action Item A-2 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

        Meeting: 11/01/21      6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Expenditures 

Request approval of the County’s October 2021 Monthly Expenditures: 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):  
County’s October 2021 Monthly Expenditures are in compliance with budget and operational 

services. 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve County’s October 2021 Monthly Expenditures. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• October 2021 Monthly Expenditures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 













 
Board of Supervisors  Action Item 
137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson  
Lebanon, VA 24266 

        Meeting: 11/01/21        6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

      Board Appointments 
RC Planning Commission 

 
Andy Smith    Four-Year Term         November 6, 2021 

 
RC Industrial Development Authority (IDA) 

 
Ernie McFaddin (Resigned)  Four-Year Term September 7, 2021 

  
Community Policy Management Team 

 
Alice Meade    Three-Year Term November 5, 2021 
Lori Gates    Three-Year Term November 5, 2021 
 
Oak Grove Community Center 
  
Linda Cross   Two-Year Term  October 7, 2021 

   Frances Glovier                       Two-Year Term                     October 7, 2021 
   Charlene Johnson  Two-Year Term  October 7, 2021 
   Tammy Perry              Two-Year Term  October 7, 2021 
   John Perry   Two-Year Term  October 7, 2021 
   Nancy Osborne  Two-Year Term  October 7, 2021 

         Peggy Kegley              Two-Year Term  October 7, 2021 
 















 

Board of Supervisors  Action Item C-1 – C-7 
137 Highland Drive Presenter: Administrator 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

                          Meeting: 11/01/21             6:00 PM 
 

 

 

County Administrator Reports & Requests 
The County Administrator Reports & Request for November 2021: 
 

      COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 

REPORTS 
 

1. VDOT Smartscale Program – U.S. Rte. 19 EB Super Elevation Improvements                     
Project - $4,941,660 Grant……………………………………………………………...C-1 

 
2. Community Development Block Grant Belfast Waterline Extension, Phase II                          

Project Contract Amendment #1……….……………………………………………..C-2 
 

3. VDOT October 2021 BOS Update Report………..……….………………………….C-3 
 

REQUESTS 
 
4. RC PSA – Nash Ford/Clinch Mountain Road Water Line Extension – 2022                   

Drinking Water Construction/Financial Assistance…………………..…………..C-4 
 

5. Virginia Resource Authority (VRA) – Courthouse Renovation and                                  
Expansion Project VirginiaHELPS Lease Revenue Financing…………………..C-5 

 
6. Authorization for Thanksgiving and Christmas Holiday Pay for Part-Time  

            Employees………………………………………………………………………………...C-6 
 

7. Authorization for RC BOS Annual Turkey Donation Program…………………..C-7 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board Discretion.  

 

 

 
 

 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

http://www.russellcountyva.us/
http://www.russellcountyva.us/


PROJECT SCORECARD
US 19 EB Super Elevation Improvements Project Id:  6936

The proposed project increases the super elevation of the eastbound direction of US 19 approximately 1,900 feet west of SR 80 to 
meet VDOT’s minimum standards. The south side of the roadway will be kept constant while the north side will be lowered to achieve 
the required super elevation through the horizontal curve. Roadway improvements will occur in the median for a length of 
approximately 1,600’ and will include a 6’ paved shoulder with rumble strips.

2.0 #245 OF 397 STATEWIDE

SMART SCALE 
SCORE #13 OF 34 DISTRICTWIDE

SMART SCALE Requested Funds $4,941,660

Total Project Cost $4,941,660

Project Benefit 1.0

Project Benefit / Total Cost 2.0

Submitting Entity: Russell County

Preliminary Engineering: Not Started

Right of Way: Not Started

Construction: Not Started

Eligible Fund Program: DGP

Evacuation Route: No

VTRANS Need: Safety (non-CoSS)

SMART SCALE Area Type D

Factor
Congestion 
Mitigation Safety Accessibility Economic Development Environment Land Use

Measure

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 P

ea
k 

P
er

io
d 

P
er

so
n 

T
hr

ou
gh

pu
t

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 P
ea

k 
P

er
io

d 
D

el
ay

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 F
at

al
 a

nd
 

In
ju

ry
 C

ra
sh

es

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 F
at

al
 a

nd
 

In
ju

ry
 C

ra
sh

 R
at

e

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 A

cc
es

s 
to

 J
ob

s

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 A

cc
es

s 
to

 J
ob

s 
fo

r 
D

is
ad

va
nt

ag
ed

 
P

op
ul

at
io

ns

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 A

cc
es

s 
to

 
M

ul
tim

od
al

 T
ra

ve
l C

ho
ic

es

S
qu

ar
e 

F
ee

t o
f 

C
om

m
er

ci
al

/In
du

st
ria

l 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

up
po

rt
ed

T
on

s 
of

 G
oo

ds
 Im

pa
ct

ed

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t t

o 
T

ra
ve

l T
im

e 
R

el
ia

bi
lit

y

P
ot

en
tia

l t
o 

Im
pr

ov
e 

A
ir 

Q
ua

lit
y

Im
pa

ct
 to

 N
at

ur
al

 a
nd

 
C

ul
tu

ra
l R

ea
so

ur
ce

s

S
up

po
rt

 o
f T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n-
E

ffi
ci

en
t L

an
d 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t

S
up

po
rt

 o
f T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n-
E

ffi
ci

en
t L

an
d 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t

0.0 0.0 17.8 1,681.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 12.4

Measure Value persons person hrs. EPDO EPDO /
100M VMT

jobs per 
resident

jobs per 
resident

adjusted
users

adj sq. ft. daily tons adj. buffer
time index

adjusted
points

impacted 
acres

access * 
pop/emp 
density.h

access * 
pop/emp  
density 
change.

Normalized Measure 
Value (0-100)

0.0 0.0 2.8 4.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0

Measure Weight
(% of Factor)

50% 50% 70% 30% 60% 20% 20% 60% 20% 20% 100%
*

N/A N/A

Factor Value 0.0 3.4 0.0 0.0 0.0

Factor Weight 
(% of Project Score)

10% 30% 15% 35% 10%
5 

(max point 
reduction)

N/A

Weighted Factor Value 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Project Benefit 1.0

SMART SCALE Cost $4,941,660

SMART SCALE Score 
(Project Benefit per $10M 
SMART SCALE Cost)

2.0

*The second environment measure subtracts up to 5 points from the project benefit score. Because it is subtracted after combining all 
weighted factors, it has no measure weight and the 10% factor weight is not applied to it.

BRISTOL01-20Revised: 02/18/2021









































 

 

       

      October 26, 2021 

 

The Honorable Rebecca Dye, Chair 

Russell County Board of Supervisors 

137 Highland Drive 

Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

 

     RE: Community Development Block Grant #19-14-36 

      Belfast Waterline Extension, Phase II Project 

      Contract Amendment #1 

 

Dear Chairperson Dye: 

 

In accordance with Russell County’s request, the Department of Housing and Community Development (DHCD) 

is amending the above referenced Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Contract by allowing the County to 

utilize the remaining funding in the grant in total of $295,656.98 to connect Phases II and III of the Belfast Waterline 

Extension Project. This will allow the County to extend benefit to an additional LMI household and eliminate the need 

for a pump station in Phase III. 

 

It is our expectation that this project will be fully complete by the original contract end date. If the County needs 

additional assistance, our team is at the ready to provide support. Please contact me to let us know how we can help you.   

 

Please acknowledge your agreement with this amendment by signing both originals. Return one signed copy 

to me. You will also need to upload a copy into “Projects and Reports” in the Centralized Application and 

Management System (CAMS) as a contract document. This will then become part of Russell County’s CDBG Contract 

documents. The effective date of this amendment is October 26, 2021. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 Amanda Healy 

 Associate Director 

 

              

The Honorable Rebecca Dye, Chair      Date 

 

c: Lonzo Lester, Russell County 

 Harvey Hart, Russell County PSA 

 Debbie Milton, Cumberland Plateau PDC 

 Rita Baker, Thompson & Litton 

Melissa Mason, DHCD 

Tonya Thomas, DHCD 

 Kelly Charapich, DHCD 

 Joe Blevins, DHCD 



Russell County BOS 
VDOT Update 
November 1, 2021 
 
Board Action Requests 
 
No Board action is requested this month. 
 
Maintenance Activities – Completed / Underway 
 
Maintenance crews are actively involved in a variety of activities. Some hand patching continues 
as work load and weather conditions allow. Patching activities, while continuing, are anticipated to 
conclude in the next few weeks. 

 
Pavement repair has been completed at the Route 65 / Alternate Route 58 intersection in 
Castlewood to remove rutting / rough pavement on the west bound approaches to the traffic signal 
at the intersection. 
 
The 3rd round of mowing has been completed on 4-lane primaries and continues on 2-lane primary  
routes. Limited additional mowing on secondary routes is planned over the next few weeks. 
 
Pavement Repairs have been completed on Route 615 (Back Valley) 
 
A pipe replacement has been completed on Route 686 (Bearwallow Road). 
 
Shoulder repairs have been completed on Route 19 (Huffman Hill). 
 
Maintenance Activities - Planned 
 
A dip on Route 19 bypass (north bound lanes) is planned to be paved / repaired prior to the end of 
the paving season. 
 
A drain pipe on Rt 632 pipe will be replaced. The replacement is anticipated to be completed in 
October. 
 
A drain pipe on Rt 80 is scheduled for replacement this fall. 
 
Patching of bridge approaches on Route 624 in Wysor Valley is planned to be completed in 
conjunction with bridge repairs.  
 
 
Non – VDOT Projects 
 
 
Pure Salmon Project 
 
VDOT has received revised plans for the project. The plans are yet to be approved. The remaining 
comments are all related to right-of-way and slope easements.  
 
 



Three Rivers Destination Center 

The residency is coordinating with the County Administrator and AEP for the relocation of 
overhead utilities on the property while accommodating VDOT’s advance signal warning beacons. 

The residency understands plans are moving forward for the welcome center along 
Alternate Route 58 and look forward to reviewing plans for the project. 

Rural Rustic / 6 Year Plan Projects 

Tumbez Hollow Rural Rustic (Drainage) 

The final environmental clearance for the project has been received. Pending weather, the pipes 
under Willow Springs Drive will be installed later in early November and minimal additional work 
related to drainage will be completed near the route 613 intersection. Additional work will be 
completed in 2022 as the remaining funds for the project from the 6 year plan become available. 

Thomas Warner Rural Rustic Project 

Work up to the point of placing the stone base for asphalt is complete. The base stone and asphalt 
will be placed in 2022. 

Construction Projects 

The bridge replacement on Route 663 (Rocky Fork Road) for which the Board approved closure of 
the route in June is underway and is to be completed in December. The contractor has not been 
on site recently. The construction division has indicated to the residency this is due to the fact the 
contractor has basically finished work necessary to set the bridge beams. The bridge beams are 
scheduled to be delivered in November. 

Residency staff stand ready to respond to inquiries and provide explanations but also offer the 1-
800-FOR-ROAD call to enter work order requests into VDOT’s tracking system.













 

Stephanie L. Hamlett 
 Executive Director 

 
Via Email 
 
October 19, 2021 
 
Mr. Lonzo Lester 
County Administrator 
County of Russell, Virginia 
137 Highland Drive 
Lebanon, Virginia 24266 
 

Re: Russell County – Courthouse Renovation and Expansion Project 
 VirginiaHELPS Lease Revenue Financing 

 
Dear Mr. Lester: 

Virginia Resources Authority ("VRA") is in receipt of your email dated October 15, 2021, requesting 
that VRA pursue a direct bank placement financing (the “Lease Financing”) through the VirginiaHELPS Program 
for the above referenced courthouse facility project on behalf of Russell County (“Russell” or the “County”).  VRA 
has completed the credit analysis related to the County’s Lease Financing request, and pursuant to a letter dated June 
11, 2021, VRA has offered to assist the County with the Lease Financing through the VirginiaHELPS Program.  VRA 
will work with its financial advisor to issue a bank request for proposals (“RFP”) on behalf of the County that details 
the funding amount and requested amortization.  The RFP will be distributed to a wide selection of local, regional, 
and national commercial banks for review and consideration.  Once the RFP is distributed, it is anticipated that bank 
respondents will be given three weeks to provide a proposal for the Lease Financing.  Please note that the RFP 
process does not guarantee a funding offer that matches every request of the County as it relates to term, security, 
amortization, and other conditions / covenants.  At the end of the RFP response period, VRA and its financial 
advisor and bond counsel would review the bank proposals to determine which option(s) may provide the lowest cost 
of funds and most loan flexibility for the County.  Once the County has reviewed the results of the RFP proposals, 
the County would have the option to accept the proposal deemed most beneficial to Russell or reject all of the 
proposals.  If the County opts to move forward with one of the bank proposals, it is anticipated that the closing of the 
Lease Financing will need to occur within 45 days of the bid. 

Discussions with the County have indicated that $15,839,568 plus costs of issuance is the requested 
funding amount for a term of up to 30 years and an interest only period of up to 36 months.  This letter confirms the 
County's authorization to have VRA, in the interest of time, engage VRA’s financial advisor and bond counsel and 
commence comprehensive legal, business, and other due diligence and documentation relating to the proposed Lease 
Financing, and thereby begin to incur financial advisory and legal fees and expenses (the "VRA Costs").  Accordingly, 
it is understood and agreed that the County will be responsible for all reasonable and documented out-of-pocket fees 
and expenses (including, but not limited to, all reasonable and documented VRA Costs) incurred by VRA in 
connection with this letter and the proposed Lease Financing.  If the Lease Financing does not close for any reason 
(including if the County decides not to pursue the Lease Financing or reject all of the bank bids obtained in connection 
with the RFP) by January 31, 2022, Russell will on that date be required to pay all of the VRA Costs, but not to 
exceed $35,000.  VRA and the County will enter into a new fee agreement with the County for the period after 
January 31, 2022, if the County still wishes to proceed with the Lease Financing.  If the Lease Financing does proceed 
to closing, the County agrees to pay all incurred VRA Costs, which are not anticipated to exceed $150,000, plus any 
closing costs / fees of the selected bank proposer.   

Based on preliminary internal discussions and feedback from the County, VRA plans to pursue a 
financing calendar, which would potentially provide for the Lease Financing closing during the week of December 



Mr. Lonzo Lester 
Page 2 
 
13, 2021; however, this schedule is contingent on a number of factors, including the provisions of the commercial 
bank proposals received pursuant to the RFP. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, regardless of whether the proposed Lease Financing closes, the 
County shall, to the extent permitted by law,  indemnify and hold VRA and the directors, officers, employees, and 
representatives of VRA (each, an "Indemnified Person"), harmless from and against all claims, expenses (including, 
but not limited to, attorneys’ fees), damages, and liabilities of any kind (each, a “Claim”) which may be incurred by, 
or asserted against, any such person in connection with, or arising out of, this letter, the proposed Lease Financing, 
any other related financing, documentation, disputes or any related investigation, litigation, or proceeding; provided 
that no Indemnified Person shall be entitled to indemnity hereunder in respect of any Claim to the extent that the 
same is found by a final, non-appealable judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction to have resulted directly from 
the gross negligence or willful misconduct of such Indemnified Person (or its affiliates or the principals, directors, 
officers, employees, representatives, agents and third party advisors of such Indemnified Person).  Under no 
circumstances shall any party hereto be liable for any punitive, exemplary, consequential or indirect damages, which 
may be alleged to result in connection with this letter or the proposed Lease Financing. 

This letter may be executed in counterparts and this letter and all matters relating in any way to the 
proposed Lease Financing (including, without limitation, all prior discussions, representations and understandings) 
shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia.  This letter 
supersedes any and all discussions, representations and understandings (whether written, verbal or implied) between 
VRA and the County with respect to the proposed Lease Financing, and may not be contradicted by evidence of any 
actual or alleged prior, contemporaneous or subsequent understandings, representations or other actions of the parties 
(whether written, verbal or implied), other than a writing signed by the parties which expressly modifies or supersedes 
this letter. 

We look forward to continuing to work with the County towards the possibility of completing the 
Lease Financing.  Please return a signed copy of this letter to me at your earliest convenience so that VRA may 
continue to pursue the proposed Lease Financing on behalf of the County. 

Sincerely,  
 
VIRGINIA RESOURCES AUTHORITY 
 
 
By:__________________________________________  
              Stephanie L. Hamlett, Executive Director 
 
 

AGREED TO AND ACCEPTED this 
___ day of October 2021: 

COUNTY OF RUSSELL, VIRGINIA 
 
 
By:  _____________________________ 
Name:    Lonzo Lester 
Title:      County Administrator 

 



 
 

 

 

Member NYSE | FINRA | SIPC Page 1

DRAFT of October 25, 2021 VIA EMAIL 
 

Introduction 
In our capacity as Financial Advisor to the Virginia Resources Authority (“VRA” or the “Authority”), Davenport & Company 
LLC (“Davenport”) is issuing this Request for Proposals (the “RFP”) on behalf of VRA to solicit proposals for a direct bank 
loan evidenced by a Tax-Exempt Bond (the “2021 Bond”), in an estimated principal amount of $16,000,000*.  
 
The proceeds of the 2021 Bond will be used through VRA’s VAHELPS program to finance various capital projects to be 
leased under a financing lease to Russell County, VA.  Through this program, VRA serves as the conduit issuer, with the 
enhanced security feature of State Aid Intercept in the event the County fails to make its payments on its financing lease.  
The County’s financing lease payments to VRA will be due 90 days in advance of payments on the 2021 Bond.  The capital 
projects to be financed include, but are not limited to, an approximately 38,000 square foot addition to the County’s existing 
courthouse, and all related costs of issuance (the “Project”).  

 

We request that you consider submitting proposals for three funding options, as shown below: 

Est. Principal Amortization & Proposal Matrix*: 
 

 
  

Option 1 |  20 Years Option 2 |  25 Years Option 3 |  30 Years
Maturity Tax-Exempt Tax-Exempt Tax-Exempt

Date 2021 Bond 2021 Bond 2021 Bond

12/1/2022 -$                                       -$                                       -$                                       
12/1/2023 -                                          -                                          -                                          
12/1/2024 -                                          -                                          -                                          
12/1/2025 700,000                          475,000                          335,000                          
12/1/2026 725,000                          495,000                          350,000                          
12/1/2027 750,000                          515,000                          365,000                          
12/1/2028 780,000                          535,000                          380,000                          
12/1/2029 805,000                          555,000                          395,000                          
12/1/2030 835,000                          575,000                          410,000                          
12/1/2031 865,000                          595,000                          425,000                          
12/1/2032 895,000                          620,000                          445,000                          
12/1/2033 930,000                          645,000                          460,000                          
12/1/2034 960,000                          670,000                          480,000                          
12/1/2035 995,000                          695,000                          500,000                          
12/1/2036 1,030,000                      720,000                          520,000                          
12/1/2037 1,065,000                      750,000                          545,000                          
12/1/2038 1,105,000                      775,000                          565,000                          
12/1/2039 1,145,000                      805,000                          590,000                          
12/1/2040 1,185,000                      835,000                          610,000                          
12/1/2041 1,230,000                      870,000                          635,000                          
12/1/2042 900,000                          665,000                          
12/1/2043 935,000                          690,000                          
12/1/2044 975,000                          720,000                          
12/1/2045 1,010,000                      745,000                          
12/1/2046 1,050,000                      780,000                          
12/1/2047 810,000                          
12/1/2048 840,000                          
12/1/2049 875,000                          
12/1/2050 915,000                          
12/1/2051 950,000                          

Totals 16,000,000$         16,000,000$         16,000,000$         
Avg. Life (Years)* 12.80 15.95 19.32

*Preliminary, subject to change. 



 
 

 

Member NYSE | FINRA | SIPC Page 2

Financial Information 
The County’s Annual Financial Reports and Budgets can be found on the County’s website at the following link:  
https://www.russellcountyva.us/154/Budget-Finance 

No formal disclosure material will be prepared, although proposers should feel free to direct any questions to Davenport. 
Your response to the RFP would be greatly appreciated. 

Key Assumptions 

The following key assumptions are to be utilized in preparing your proposal: 

Issuer: Virginia Resources Authority 

Security: The 2021 Bond will be issued through VRA. Under this structure, VRA will issue a revenue 
bond secured by an assignment to the Lender of its interest in a Financing Lease 
between VRA and the County pursuant to which the County will agree to make lease 
payments that meet the debt service requirements of the 2021 Bond.  

The County’s undertaking to pay the lease payments under the Financing Lease will be 
subject to and contingent upon annual appropriation by the Board of Supervisors of the 
County and an expression of the Board’s moral obligation to pay such debt service.  

Additionally, the payments under the Financing Lease will be collateralized by a security 
interest in the County’s Courthouse which has an insured value of $_________ with 
improvements to be made approximating $_________ (for an estimated total value of 
$___________).  

The County’s undertaking will NOT constitute a pledge of the full faith and credit of the 
Commonwealth or any of its political subdivisions, including the County and VRA. 

State Aid Intercept:  The 2021 Bond will be additionally secured by VRA’s ability to enact State Aid Intercept, 
as authorized under the Code of Virginia Section 62.1-216.1.  Under this statute, VRA is 
authorized by law to take any and all action to cause the interception of the state aid 
provided to local governments that fail to make a payment on their local obligation when 
due.  Russell County’s local bond payments to VRA will be due 90 days in advance of 
VRA’s payment to the 2021 Bondholder, which will provide ample time to enforce this 
remedy if necessary.  VRA has never had to use this remedy. 

 For reference, in FY 2020, Russell County received $42,154,242 of revenue from the 
Commonwealth (source: Virginia Auditor of Public Accounts 2020 Comparative Report 
of Local Government). 

Ratings: None applied for on this financing.  The County does not currently carry a credit rating. 
 

Drawdown: All proceeds drawn at Closing and deposited with the Virginia State Non-Arbitrage 
Program (“VASNAP”). 

Direct Bank Loan: Proposals are requested for a direct bank loan, each evidenced by a 2021 Bond, by a 
single financial institution or a syndicate of financial institutions represented by one lead 
institution with which VRA, the County and their consultants will deal with exclusively on 
all aspects of the financing. The successful proposer(s) will be expected to provide a 
letter in form satisfactory to VRA and Bond Counsel regarding the qualifications of the 
lender and stating that the loan is being made for its own account, with the present intent 
to hold the loan to maturity and with no intention of sale or distribution. No formal 



 
 

 

Member NYSE | FINRA | SIPC Page 3

offering document will be prepared, although proposers should feel free to direct any 
questions about the County or its finances to the undersigned. 

Interest Payments: Semi-annually on June 1 and December 1, commencing June 1, 2022. 

Interest Rate(s): To the extent possible, please provide fixed Tax-Exempt (Non-Bank Qualified) interest 
rate quotes through Final Maturity. 

 If the quoted rate(s) will not be in effect through Final Maturity, please specify all 
pertinent details relating to the interest rate reset, including the applicable interest rate 
index from which the rate reset will be calculated. 

  As described more fully under the Preliminary Timetable section (later) in this RFP, VRA 
and the County ask that, to the extent possible, your institution would hold-firm the 
interest rates provided in your proposal(s) through December 31, 2021 in order to allow 
time for the appropriate actions and approvals. 

Principal Payments: Annually on December 1, commencing December 1, 2025, through final maturity. 

Optional Redemption: VRA and the County are looking for maximum flexibility. Please specify the 
call/prepayment structure that would provide the most flexibility at the lowest cost of 
funds. 

Documents and Opinion(s): McGuireWoods LLP, as Bond Counsel to VRA, will provide the necessary legal documents 
and reasonably necessary opinion(s). 

Lender’s Counsel: If your institution will involve its own legal counsel for purposes of reviewing the legal and 
financing documents, please provide the name of the firm, the primary contact(s), and a 
Not-to-Exceed fee for which the County will be responsible. If your institution covers these 
costs, please clearly indicate this benefit in your submittal. 

Ongoing Disclosure: The County will provide annual audited financial statements. Please specify any 
additional requirements. 

Bank Closing Costs: None anticipated. Please specify any exceptions. 

Annual/Ongoing Fees: None anticipated. Please specify any exceptions. 

Award: The County Board of Supervisors anticipates selecting the winning proposer and taking 
formal action at its December 6, 2021 meeting. VRA currently has all  necessary 
approvals in hand. VRA and the County reserve the right to reject any or all proposals 
and to waive any irregularity in any proposal or the process. 

Closing:  Closing may take place the week of December 13, 2021. The opinion of Bond Counsel 
will be delivered at Closing. 

Additionally, please specify any other terms or conditions that would affect the proposed structure of the new issue. If your 
institution proposes provisions that are considered customary by the bank, but are not considered customary in tax-exempt 
municipal financing, please be specific in your proposal.  Examples may include, but not limited to the following: 

1. Yield Maintenance 

– Adjustments related to changes outside of the County’s control (i.e., Corporate Tax Rate Structure, Capital Reserve 
Requirements, and/or Regulations such as Basel III). 
 



 
 

 

Member NYSE | FINRA | SIPC Page 4

2. Cross Default 

– Provisions tying this financing with other General Obligation and/or Lease debt, whether publicly offered or held by 
banking/financing institutions (held by your institution and/or others). 

3. Acceleration Provisions  

4. Credit Ratings 

– Provisions related to having a formal credit rating outstanding, minimum credit rating levels, and/or having this 
bond rated in the future. 

5.  “Most Favored Nation” Provisions 

– Inclusion of restrictive covenants in other documents by reference. 

Proposals which do not contemplate these additional provisions would be preferred. 

Preliminary Timetable: 

Date Task 

October _____ Davenport to distribute RFP to local, regional, and national banking institutions. 

November 17 Proposals due from banks by 11:00am Richmond, Virginia Time. 

December 6 County Board Meeting  
 County Board considers adopting final resolution(s) and form of financing documents. 

By December 17 Planned close on bank financing. 

December 31 Rates held firm through this date  

 
 
We look forward to your response by 11:00am Richmond, Virginia Time on Wednesday, November 17, 2021. Proposals 
should be emailed to our office as follows: 
 

Ty Wellford   Zach Lucanie   Peter D’Alema 
Davenport & Company LLC Davenport & Company LLC Virginia Resources Authority 
(804) 697-2915   (804) 697-2914   (804) 616-3446 
twellford@investdavenport.com zlucanie@investdavenport.com pdalema@virginiaresources.org 
 
 
In the meantime, should you have any further questions or concerns please feel free to contact me at the number above. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
 
 
 

Ty Wellford 
Senior Vice President 
 
CC: Arthur Anderson, McGuireWoods LLP 
 David Gustin, McGuireWoods LLP 
 Jack Casey, Davenport & Company LLC  



 
 

 

Member NYSE | FINRA | SIPC Page 5

Municipal Advisor Disclosure 

 

 

 

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) has clarified that a broker, dealer or municipal securities dealer engaging in 
municipal advisory activities outside the scope of underwriting a particular issuance of municipal securities should be subject to 
municipal advisor registration. Davenport & Company LLC (“Davenport”) has registered as a municipal advisor with the SEC. As a 
registered municipal advisor Davenport may provide advice to a municipal entity or obligated person. An obligated person is an entity 
other than a municipal entity, such as a not for profit corporation, that has commenced an application or negotiation with an entity to 
issue municipal securities on its behalf and for which it will provide support. If and when an issuer engages Davenport to provide financial 
advisory or consultant services with respect to the issuance of municipal securities, Davenport is obligated to evidence such a financial 
advisory relationship with a written agreement. 

When acting as a registered municipal advisor Davenport is a fiduciary required by federal law to act in the best interest of a municipal 
entity without regard to its own financial or other interests. Davenport is not a fiduciary when it acts as a registered investment advisor, 
when advising an obligated person, or when acting as an underwriter, though it is required to deal fairly with such persons.  

This material was prepared by public finance, or other non-research personnel of Davenport.  This material was not produced by a 
research analyst, although it may refer to a Davenport research analyst or research report.  Unless otherwise indicated, these views (if 
any) are the author’s and may differ from those of the Davenport fixed income or research department or others in the firm. Davenport 
may perform or seek to perform financial advisory services for the issuers of the securities and instruments mentioned herein. 

This material has been prepared for information purposes only and is not a solicitation of any offer to buy or sell any security/instrument 
or to participate in any trading strategy.  Any such offer would be made only after a prospective participant had completed its own 
independent investigation of the securities, instruments or transactions and received all information it required to make its own 
investment decision, including, where applicable, a review of any offering circular or memorandum describing such security or instrument.  
That information would contain material information not contained herein and to which prospective participants are referred.  This 
material is based on public information as of the specified date, and may be stale thereafter.  We have no obligation to tell you when 
information herein may change.  We make no representation or warranty with respect to the completeness of this material.  Davenport 
has no obligation to continue to publish information on the securities/instruments mentioned herein. Recipients are required to comply 
with any legal or contractual restrictions on their purchase, holding, sale, exercise of rights or performance of obligations under any 
securities/instruments transaction.   

The securities/instruments discussed in this material may not be suitable for all investors or issuers.  Recipients should seek independent 
financial advice prior to making any investment decision based on this material.  This material does not provide individually tailored 
investment advice or offer tax, regulatory, accounting or legal advice.  Prior to entering into any proposed transaction, recipients should 
determine, in consultation with their own investment, legal, tax, regulatory and accounting advisors, the economic risks and merits, as 
well as the legal, tax, regulatory and accounting characteristics and consequences, of the transaction.  You should consider this material 
as only a single factor in making an investment decision.   

The value of and income from investments and the cost of borrowing may vary because of changes in interest rates, foreign exchange 
rates, default rates, prepayment rates, securities/instruments prices, market indexes, operational or financial conditions or companies 
or other factors.  There may be time limitations on the exercise of options or other rights in securities/instruments transactions.  Past 
performance is not necessarily a guide to future performance and estimates of future performance are based on assumptions that may 
not be realized.  Actual events may differ from those assumed and changes to any assumptions may have a material impact on any 
projections or estimates.  Other events not taken into account may occur and may significantly affect the projections or estimates.  Certain 
assumptions may have been made for modeling purposes or to simplify the presentation and/or calculation of any projections or 
estimates, and Davenport does not represent that any such assumptions will reflect actual future events.  Accordingly, there can be no 
assurance that estimated returns or projections will be realized or that actual returns or performance results will not materially differ 
from those estimated herein.  This material may not be sold or redistributed without the prior written consent of Davenport.  

Version 01.13.14 | ZL | TW 

 



Commonwealth of Virginia 
2021 Pay and Holiday Calendar 

Revised October 2020 

State Holidays 
 
January 1      
New Year’s Day 

January 18 

Martin Luther King, Jr. Day 

February 15 

George Washington Day 

May 31 

Memorial Day 

June 18 

Juneteenth (Observed)  

July 5 

Independence Day (Observed)  

September 6 

Labor Day 

October 11 

Columbus Day & Yorktown     
Victory Day 

November 2 

Election Day  

November 11 

Veterans Day  

November 24 

4 hours additional holiday time 

November 25 

Thanksgiving 

November 26 

Day After Thanksgiving 

December 23 

8 hours additional holiday time 

December 24 

Christmas (Observed) 

December 31 
New Year’s (Observed)  

Please note:  In some agencies, the 
holiday and payday schedule may 
vary from what is shown here.  If 
you have questions, see your 
agency human resources officer. 
 
Denotes Payday 
 
Denotes Holiday 
 
Denotes Additional     
Time Off          
 
Denotes Payday on  
Holiday or Time Off 
 
Published by the Virginia Depart-
ment of Human Resource Manage-
ment. An equal opportunity employ-
er. 
 
Published by Commonwealth of 
Virginia October 2020 

  

 S M  T W  T  F  S 

      1   2 

 3  4  5   6  7  8  9 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 

31       

January 

 S M  T W T  F  S  

   1  2  3  4  5 6 

 7  8  9  10 11 12 13 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

28       

February 

 S   M  T  W  T  F  S 

  1  2   3  4  5  6 

 7   8  9  10 11 12 13 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

 28  29 30 31    

March 

April 

 S M  T W  T  F  S 

      1  2  3 

 4  5  6 7  8   9 10 

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 

25 26 27 28 29 30  

May June 

 S M T W   T  F  S 

       1  2  3 

 4   5  6  7   8  9 10 

11 12 13 14  15 16 17 

18 19 20 21  22 23 24 

25 26 27 28  29 30 31 

July August 

 S M  T W  T  F  S  

    1  2  3  4 

 5  6  7  8  9 10 11 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

26 27 28 29 30   

September 

 S M T W  T  F  S 

      1  2 

 3  4  5  6  7  8  9 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 

31       

October November  

  

 S M  T W  T  F  S 

    1  2  3  4 

 5  6  7  8  9 10 11 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

26 27 28 29 30 31  

December  

 S M  T W  T  F  S 

       1 

 2  3  4  5  6  7  8 

 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 

30 31      

 S M  T W  T  F  S 

 1  2  3  4  5  6  7 

 8  9 10 11 12 13 14 

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 

29 30 31     

 S  M  T  W  T  F  S 

   1  2  3  4   5 

 6  7  8  9 10 11 12 

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 

27 28 29 30    

 S M T W  T  F  S 

  1  2  3  4  5  6 

 7  8  9 10 11 12 13 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

28 29 30     

 8 hrs      4 hrs     






















































































	Authorization - Minutes BOS.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Authorization - Expenditures.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Reports1.pdf
	Meeting: 11/01/21             6:00 PM
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):

	Public Hearing.pdf
	Meeting: 11/1/21     6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:




